
 

 
 

 
Oaklands Road  
Haywards Heath  
West Sussex  
RH16 1SS 

 
Switchboard:  01444 458166 

 
DX 300320 Haywards Heath 1 

www.midsussex.gov.uk 

 

 

 

Working together for a better Mid Sussex 

 
 

27 August 2021 
 

PLEASE NOTE START TIME OF MEETING 
 

Given Covid levels and the ongoing work to get the adult population double vaccinated, the 
Liquor Licensing Committee will occur with appropriate Councillors participating via a 
remote video link, and public access via a live stream video through the Mid Sussex District 
Council’s YouTube channel. 
 
 
Dear Councillor, 
 
A meeting of LIQUOR LICENSING COMMITTEE will be held via Remote Video Link on 

TUESDAY, 7TH SEPTEMBER, 2021 at 10.00 am when your attendance is requested. 

 
Yours sincerely, 

KATHRYN HALL 

Chief Executive 

 

A G E N D A 
 

  Pages 

1.   Roll Call and Virtual Meeting Explanation. 
 

 

2.   To receive apologies for absence. 
 

 

3.   To receive Declaration of Interests from Members in respect of 
any matter on the Agenda. 
 

 

 The procedure the Licensing Panel will follow in 
considering the application is set out in the Licensing Act 
2003, its attendant Regulations and was agreed by the 
Licensing Committee on 2nd February 2005.  The Licensing 
Panel, in accordance with rule 14 of the Licensing Act 2003 
(Hearings) Regulations 2005 decide to exclude the public 
from all or part of the hearing where the Licensing Panel 
considers that it is in the public interest to do so. 
 

 

4.   To confirm the Minutes of the previous meeting held on 9 April 
2021. 
 

5 - 12 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCW9I9y-TZXZs6jOFmOgiPyQ
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCW9I9y-TZXZs6jOFmOgiPyQ


 
 

5.   Application for a New Premises Licence. 
 

13 - 58 

 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 7 September 2021



 
 
 
 
Human Rights Act Implications 
 

Licensing Act 2003 
 

A licensing authority must carry out its function under the Licensing Act 2003 with a view of 
promoting the licensing objectives. 

 
The Licensing objectives are:- 

 
(a) the prevention of crime and disorder; 

 
(b) public safety; 

 
(c) the prevention of public nuisance; and 

 
(d) the protection of children from harm. 

 
In carrying out its licensing functions a licensing authority must also have regard to:- 

 
(a) its licensing statement published under Section 5 of the Licensing Act 2003 (this may be 

viewed on the Mid Sussex District Council website); 

 
and 

 
(b) any guidance issued by the Secretary of State under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 

(this may be viewed on the Department for Culture, Media and Sport website). 

 
Members are asked to consider the human rights implications for both the licensee who has 
rights under Article 1 of the First Protocol, the Right to Property (which includes the licence):and the 
objectors who have rights under Article 8 to Respect for Private and Family Life, and Article 1 of 
the First Protocol, their right to enjoy peaceful use of their possessions. 
 
 
 
To: Members of Liquor Licensing Committee: Councillors N Webster, G Allen and S Smith 

 
 
 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 7 September 2021



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 

Minutes of a meeting of Mid Sussex District Council Liquor Licensing 
Committee held on Friday, 9th April, 2021  

from 10.00 am - 11.47 am 
 

Present: Councillors: N Webster  (Chairman) 
 J Dabell  
 C Laband 
 

 
Officers in attendance:  Franca Currall, Solicitor 

Jon Bryant, Senior Licensing Officer 
Alison Hammond, Democratic Services Officer 
 

 
Also in attendance: Mr John Thorpe, Applicant 

 Mr Peter Sparham, Resident  
 Mrs Emma Sparham, Resident 
 Ms Joanna Steadman, Resident 
 Ms Karen Sedgewick-Smith, Resident 

 
 
Cllr Webster was nominated as Chairman for the meeting.    The Solicitor carried out 
a roll call to establish attendance at the meeting and provided information on the 
format of the virtual meeting. 

 
 

LS.1 ROLL CALL AND VIRTUAL MEETING EXPLANATION.  
 
Cllr Webster was nominated as Chairman for the meeting.    The Solicitor carried out 
a roll call to establish attendance at the meeting and provided information on the 
format of the virtual meeting. 
 

LS.2 TO RECEIVE APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE.  
 
None. 
 

LS.3 TO RECEIVE DECLARATION OF INTERESTS FROM MEMBERS IN RESPECT OF 
ANY MATTER ON THE AGENDA.  
 
None. 
 

LS.4 TO CONFIRM THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 30 JULY 2020.  
 
The Minutes of the Committee meetings held on 30 July 2020 were agreed as a 
correct record by Cllrs Dabell and Webster.  The minutes were electronically signed 
by the Chairman. 
 

LS.5 APPLICATION OF A NEW PREMISES LICENCE.  
 
ACSC SERVICES LIMITED, THE TRADING SUBSIDIARY OF ANSTY SPORTS 
AND SOCIAL CLUB, ANSTY VILLAGE CENTRE AT RECREATION GROUND, 
DEAKS LANE, ANSTY, RH17 5AS.  
 
Introduction and outline of the report: 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 7 September 2021 5

Agenda Item 4



 
 

 
 

 
Jon Bryant, Senior Licensing Officer introduced the application.  He advised that the 
Committee would determine the application in accordance with the Licensing Act 
2003, MSDC Licensing Policy and the Home Office Guidance issued under Section 
182 Licensing Act 2003, whilst taking into consideration the relevant representations 
of four neighbours close to the site on public nuisance and one representation on 
public safety.  
 
He highlighted the history of the Club and that the Licensing Team were not aware of 
any complaints from the Public or intervention by Sussex Police or other authorities.  
The new Premises Licence was requested for the new building as it would give 
greater flexibility than a Club Premises Certificate.  The application had been 
advertised on site and in the local newspaper.   
 
The Officer noted that some of the matters raised in the representations were not 
relevant for the purposes of the Licensing Act 2003. These were comments 
concerning additional TENS applications (Temporary Event Notices), planning, car 
parking, timings, odour from the premises and people driving to the site. Relevant 
representations have been made on matters relating to the objective of Public 
Nuisance – the timings of the use of the outside space and noise from that use. He 
advised that a list of possible conditions were included with the report and related to 
CCTV, staff training, closure of windows and doors and use of the outside areas.  It 
was noted that the Committee could add extra conditions. 
 
The Officer summarised the relevant points raised in the representations: use of 
outside space and noise nuisance late at night; potential for public nuisance from the 
use of outside space and the request for additional hours.  The Committee were 
reminded that the new building was still under construction and the photos of the site 
showed the position of the new building in relation to the current Club House.  
 
Section 18 of the Licensing Act 2003 was highlighted along with the Licensing 
Objectives of the: Prevention of Crime and Disorder; Promotion of Public Safety; 
Prevention of Public Nuisance and Prevention of Harm to children and young 
persons. That a representation was relevant if it concerns the likely effect on the 
Licensing Objectives of granting a licence and was more probable than not.  The 
Committee was advised that any party to the proceedings could appeal in a 
Magistrates Court. 
 
Questions from the Members to the Officer: 
A Member sought clarification on refuse collections and the timings of deliveries to 
the premises in the application.  Mr Thorpe advised that restricted timings for 
deliveries would be added to the contract with suppliers and he would check 
regarding the refuse collection.  The Officer advised that any guidance on timings for 
refuse collections from the premises would come from the Environment Protection 
Team but the Liquor Panel could add as part of the conditions if the licence was to be 
granted. 
 
A Member thanked the Officer on the comprehensive report.  
 
The Chairman sought clarification on the irrelevant matters raised in the 
representations relating to the TENS.   The Officer advised that the person who 
made the representation had misunderstood.  The premises would not be permitted 
to split the areas and have 15 TENS for two separate areas.  TENS are separate 
applications and are processed separately from the Premises.  These applications 
are reviewed by Sussex Police and the Environment Protection Team to determine 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 7 September 2021 6



 
 

 
 

whether they are granted. He confirmed that no representations were received from 
the Environment Protection Team and Sussex Police made comments regarding 
people being able to take their drinks around the edge of the cricket ground during 
matches.  This has been resolved by restricting drinking to the designated area 
outside the premises.  
 
The Chairman asked how the CCTV would be monitored.  The Officer highlighted the 
proposed detailed conditions on CCTV, which state the equipment should operate in 
all light levels, retention of and checking of the recordings and disclosure to Police if 
requested.  
 
As there were no further questions from the Members, the Chairman invited Mr 
Thorpe to address the Committee. 
 
Applicant address and Questions from the Committee: 
Mr Thorpe advised that additional information was provided on 22 March after 
representations were received.  This included the history of the Club, no reported 
incidents with Sussex Police or the Licensing Team.  How the changes to the 
governance and setting up of a new charity will deliver the activities. The Company 
would manage the bar.  The Charity was aware of the impact on near neighbours 
and residents of Deaks Lane and would work closely with them and be sensitive to 
matter raised, reducing the impact as much as possible.  
 
Policies have been strengthened in relation to noise in outside areas from clearing 
glassware.  Ansty Village Hall Trust had raised the issue of bottling out, this would 
not be done before 8am or later. It could be restricted to later in the day and in early 
evening if necessary.  
 
The Chairman noted the representations on the lack of public engagement during the 
development of the site and he asked for details. 
 
Mr Thorpe confirmed the project had been developed over a long time and a public 
consultation took place in 2013. An exhibition followed in 2016 and a further 
consultation was undertaken as part of the planning process for the current design. 
The Parish Council led a public consultation which was linked to their funding of the 
project 2019. 
 
Following a question from the Chairman Mr Thorpe advised that the Designated 
Premises Supervisor (DPS) would provide an immediate response to any phone calls 
received on the designated phone line for reporting concerns by local residents. The 
DPS would be frequently on site, the current Chairman will be the DPS.  Later a 
General Manager would be appointed and either they, or their nominee, would then 
deal with any phone calls. He reiterated that regular contact to deal with any 
concerns was vital.  
 
A Member asked if the activities of the Club were just for members and their guests 
and if the premises would be rented for other groups to use.  Mr Thorpe confirmed 
that the club room could be rented during the day, like the Village Hall.  The 
Clubroom would not be available for hire during the evenings.  He noted that most 
members are members of the sporting section and the social membership is for 
people resident outside the immediate area.  The Club committee are investigating 
how to administer the scheme and monitor the visitors.  
 
In response to a question from the Chairman the Officer advised that Members’ 
Clubs normally operate under a Club premises Certificate.  This restricts those 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 7 September 2021 7



 
 

 
 

coming in, membership of club, members can sign in guests, and there is restriction 
on the time people wait to become a member. This model of operation is now 
outdated for most social clubs; it also restricts the sale of alcohol to other visitors to 
the club.  A Premises Licence allows a Club to restrict who enters the Club and offers 
more flexibility to admit people.  
 
Franca Currall, Solicitor to the Panel advised that as a charitable organisation the 
Club must meet association guidance.  The Committee could request that the Club 
manage their membership similarly to that of a Club Premises Certificate.  
Alternatively, if the Committee were happy with the proposals and information 
provided, they could leave the Club to manage themselves.  The Committee were 
reminded that a review can be undertaken at any time if issues arise at a later date 
and there is no time limit when these reviews can occur.  
 
A Member queried the maximum number of people permitted in the premises and 
noted the use of Security Industry Authority licensed staff for some events.  Mr 
Thorpe confirmed that the capacity of the hall has been covered as part of the 
planning application, a maximum of 100 people has been suggested for the club 
room.  He noted that the Club room would not host weddings, they could be held in 
the Village Hall. The capacity of the hall is managed by the trustees but would be 
less with table and chairs.    
 
The Chairman noted that the Village Hall is one third of the ground floor as much 
space is taken up by changing rooms etc.  
 
Interested Party - Representation by Peter Sparham 
Mr Sparham queried the capacity of the premises and asked if any comments had 
been received from the Fire Service. The Chairman advised this had already been 
covered.  The Solicitor noted that as the Fire Service were a statutory consultee they 
had been consulted and would have responded on capacity issues.  Mr Thorpe 
confirmed Building Control had been in communication with Fire Service about the  
escape routes and capacity as part of planning application. 
 
The Chairman reminded those present that the capacity of the premises was not for 
the Licensing Committee to discuss.  
 
Mr Sparham asked for clarification on drinks promotions.  Mr Thorpe advised they 
might promote some drinks in club, such as ales etc. to provide variety to the 
members and determine the drinks they would like to be supplied. 
 
Mr Sparham noted the duty of care to those incapacitated by alcohol and asked how 
staff would deal with drunk patrons.  Mr Thorpe advised the DPS or manager would 
be assisted by the bar staff.   All bar staff would be properly trained and would take 
action as required and manage the bar area.  
  
The Chairman noted that the Club would be required to operate within the law, if not 
then the public can lodge a complaint.  The Licensing Authority will monitor the Club 
through the monitoring process that is in place and will ensure the licence conditions 
are adhered to.  
 
Mr Sparham highlighted the history of no previous incidents but noted that the new 
building was much bigger, with a larger catchment area, with more potential patrons, 
which could increase the risk of incidents.  He noted the public nuisance caused by 
the construction of the building during the day and commented that noise nuisance 
may be greater at night.  He noted the restrictions on the use of outside space,  

Liquor Licensing Committee - 7 September 2021 8



 
 

 
 

closure of windows and protection of children from harm is extensive.  There was no 
account of the children who live near the location for noise nuisance.  He expressed 
concern on how the Club would monitor the multiple entrances to the site and the use 
of CCTV.  He highlighted that the club is located on a communal recreation ground.  
 
The Chairman confirmed that the Club House is located on council land, noted 
concerns raised with this and asked the Solicitor to comment.   The Solicitor noted 
that Mid Sussex has many recreational buildings next to or on Council owned land; 
some of these buildings are Council owned and some are in private ownership.  
Where the land and / or building are Council owned there will be restrictions on the 
lease / licence to control the activities and there would also be landlord obligations in 
the use and management of the building. This is managed by the Outdoor services 
and Property Estates departments. 
 
Mr Thorpe noted that the Club will take a lease from the Council on the pavilion site 
and the Council will be the landlord.  The Club will be subject to conditions within the 
lease.  He explained that the Club had an extension to take on extra land to provide 
more facilities, the additional area is open to dog walkers and the public. The 
demolition of the old hall will provide further car park spaces. 
 
Interested Party - Representation by Emma Sparham 
Ms Sparham has represented all of the residents who live on the boundaries of the 
old and new sites.  There are lots of families in the immediate area who have 
experienced public nuisance in the past year, one illegal event during the pandemic. 
She expressed concerns with the bigger building and the longer licence times to sell 
alcohol may cause more public nuisances. 
 
The Chairman confirmed the Committee will weigh up the public benefit and the 
concerns of the neighbours / public nearby in granting the licence. 
 
Interested Party - Representation by Joanna Steadman 
Ms Steadman confirmed she agreed with the other interested parties’ comments on 
the social impacts on the neighbourhood.  She expressed concern on how non-
members entering the Club would be monitored and how people using the Village 
Hall would be differentiated from those using the club room. She highlighted that the 
current building is much smaller, self-contained and unglazed.  It cannot be directly 
compared the new building.  There is a much wider implication to the public that uses 
the local area, some of the public feel intimidated when using the community facility.  
 
The Chairman advised that if a licence is granted the Committee will expect a 
process of communication between the Club and the neighbours.  The impact will be 
different as it will not be the same type/size of premises as before.   The Committee 
will considered all matters raised within the legal parameters. 
 
Interested Party - Representation by Karen Sedgewick-Smith 
Ms Sedgewick-Smith advised that she agreed with all points already covered.  She 
suggested constant open communications with local residents and the Club to 
ensure concerns raised are discussed.  A clear route of communication should be 
maintained in case of changes to management in the future.  She suggested a 
WhatsApp or Facebook group to permit quick communication.  
 
The Chairman advised that the Committee expected the telephone number, for the 
residents to contact the Club, to remain the same. 
 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 7 September 2021 9



 
 

 
 

Ms Steadman highlighted her concern of the fire escape balcony being used for 
gathering and drinking. She felt it would not be appropriate to be used as a drinking 
area.  
 
The Chairman advised that the Committee have been taking notes throughout the 
meeting.  
 
Summing up by Mr Thorpe: 
Mr Thorpe advised he was grateful for the comments made. He advised that the 
balcony area is not solely a fire escape, it is 3 metres wide.  A clear route through 
must be maintained, as it is a primary means of escape for the snooker room and a 
secondary escape route for the club room. There is a full programme for the summer, 
and it is unlikely that the volume of traffic can be reduced on particular days.  The 
Cricket Club provides facilities for 6 to 16 years and 4 senior groups with disability 
cricket being added this summer.  This is a family club with responsibilities to families 
and residents and which knows its obligations to the public.  Bad language will be 
dealt with and no barbeques will be permitted in that area again.  They had carefully 
planned a working party in socially distanced family groups, but have now suspended 
all action on the site.  He liked the idea of a WhatsApp group for communication and 
to keep dialogue open and encourage good communication.  The only area for future 
growth was discounted membership for local residents. 
 
The Chairman thanked the officers and public participants to the meeting. 
 
The Solicitor advised the public participants that the panel would retire to a private 
virtual room to deliberate and make a decision today.  If the decision took longer they 
would be advised.  To meet legislation the applicant would receive the decision and 
any reasons within five working days and copies would be sent to all interested 
parties.  Interested Parties would have 21 days to appeal to Brighton Magistrates 
Court from receipt of the letter. 
 
As there were no further questions the public meeting  
finished at 11:18 am so that the Committee could deliberate. 
 
The revised conditions were agreed by the Committee in the closed session.  
 
RESOLVED 
 
The application for a Premises Licence be approved, subject to the following 
conditions: 
  

1. Digital CCTV and appropriate recording equipment to be installed in accordance 

with Home Office Guidelines relating to UK Police Requirements for Digital CCTV 

System (PSDB Publication Number 09/05), operated and maintained throughout 

the premises internally and externally to cover all public areas, including the 

entrance to the premises. (Amend this part as appropriate) The system shall be on 

and recording at all times the premises licence is in operation  

a. The CCTV cameras and recording equipment must be of sufficient quality to 

work in all lighting levels inside the premises at all times. 

b. CCTV footage will be stored for a minimum of 31 days 

c. The CCTV images will record and display dates and times, and these times will 

be checked regularly to ensure their accuracy. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 7 September 2021 10



 
 

 
 

d. The management will give full and immediate cooperation and technical 

assistance to the Police in the event that CCTV footage is required for the 

prevention and detection of suspected or alleged crime. 

e. Subject to Data Protection guidance and legislation, the management of the 

premises will ensure that key staff are fully trained in the operation of the CCTV 

and will be able to download selected footage onto a disk for the police without 

difficulty or delay and without charge to Sussex Police. 

f. Any breakdown or system failure will be notified to the police via ‘phone 

(currently 101) or email immediately & remedied within a time frame agreed 

with Sussex Police.  

2. The premises will operate an age verification policy set at a minimum of 25 years, 

whereby any person attempting to buy alcohol who appears to be under the 

specified age will be asked for photographic ID to prove their age. Signage 

advertising the “Challenge” policy will be displayed in prominent locations in the 

premises and shall include the point of sale and the area where the alcohol is 

displayed, as a minimum 

3. All staff members engaged, or to be engaged, in selling alcohol on the premises 

shall receive full training pertinent to the Licensing Act, specifically in regard age-

restricted sales, and the refusal of sales to persons believed to be under the 

influence of alcohol or drugs. Induction training must be completed prior to 

engaging in any sale of alcohol. Refresher training shall be conducted thereafter 

at intervals of no more than twelve weeks. All restricted sales training undertaken 

by staff members shall be fully documented and signed by the employee and the 

DPS. All training records shall be made immediately available upon request to 

officers of a Responsible Authority. 

 

4. A refusals record must be kept at the premises which details all refusals to sell 

alcohol. This record must include the date and time of the incident, a description of 

the customer, the name of the staff member who refused the sale and the reason 

the sale was refused. All entries must be made within 24 hours of the refusal. The 

DPS must review and sign the record at intervals of no more than eight weeks. 

The record must be made immediately available upon request to officers of a 

Responsible Authority. 

 

5. No customer shall be allowed to use the outside or balcony areas after 21.00 

hours, except for customers permitted to temporarily leave the premises to smoke 

in the designated smoking area. 

6. No furniture, sports bags or sports equipment shall be taken on or placed on the 

balcony. It is to be kept clear of any items that may impede or obstruct the safe 

passage of people in the event of an emergency. A notice reminding patrons using 

the balcony of this requirement is to be put up inside the premises near the door 

or doors if more than one, giving access balcony and this notice is to be placed in 

a prominent place on the balcony itself. 

7. Prohibit glasses and bottles being taken beyond a designated area which 

comprises the outside areas of the balcony, the patio and the grass terrace 

extending 3 metres into the Recreation Ground.  

Liquor Licensing Committee - 7 September 2021 11



 
 

 
 

8. Notices will be displayed with clear signage stating no drinks on the perimeter of 

the designated area stating, ‘No glasses beyond this point’ 

9. All (external doors/windows) must be kept closed after 21:00 hrs, other than 

during access and egress or an emergency. 

 
10. Procedures for responding to noise complaints shall be established.  Written 

records of noise complaints and action taken in response shall be kept and made 

available to officers from Mid Sussex District Council when requested. 

 
11. Prominent, clear and legible notices shall be displayed at all exits, and on and at 

entrances to the balcony, requesting patrons and staff to leave the premises in an 

orderly and quiet manner. 

 

12. Bottling out will only be permitted between the hours of 8:00 and 21:00 hours 

Monday to Saturday and 9:00 and 20:30 on Sunday and Bank Holidays.  

 

13. The collection of waste from the premises by third parties and the delivery of 

goods by suppliers to the premises must not take place before 8:30 on any day of 

the week. 

 
14. All staff will be made aware of the conditions of the licence. This is to be made to 

them in writing and documented in their staff training records. 

 
 

The meeting finished at 11.47 am 
 

Chairman 
 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 7 September 2021 12



        
 
APPLICATION OF A NEW PREMISES LICENCE 
 
REPORT OF: Tom Clark, Head of Regulatory Services 

 
Contact Officer: Jon Bryant, Senior Licensing Officer  

Email: jon.bryant@midsussex,gov.uk Tel: 01444 477076 
Wards Affected: Crawley Down 
Key Decision 
Report To:  

No 
Liquor Licensing Panel 
 

 
 
Purpose of Report 
 
1 To provide information in order that the Licensing Committee can determine 

an application for a Premises Licence. 
 
Summary 
 
2 An application, pursuant to Section 17 Licensing Act 2003, has been made by 

AYM Catering Ltd, The Carriage, 12 Old Station Close, Crawley Down, 
Crawley, West Sussex RH10 4TX. The Environmental Health Team, a 
Responsible Authority and three residents have submitted representations 
objecting to the application on the grounds of public nuisance.  

 
3 The Committee is asked to determine the application in accordance with the 

Licensing Act 2003, MSDC Licensing Policy and the Home Office Guidance 
issued under Section 182 Licensing Act 2003, whilst having due regard to the 
applicant’s submissions and relevant representations. 

_________________________________________________________________ 
 
Background  
 
4 The Carriage Restaurant is an existing business and is currently trading from 

12 Old Station Close, Crawley Down. The premises were originally issued 
with a Premises Licence on 7th October 2020. The current Premises Licence 
is only applicable in respect of the actual building at 12 Old Station Close.  

 
5 Since the grant of the existing Premises Licence the owners of The Carriage 

have taken possession of the neighbouring adjacent property at 6 Station 
Road. This property was previously an Estate Agents. The building is now 
known as ‘The Front Carriage’. The new premises additionally includes an 
outside forecourt area to the front of this property. This area forms part of the 
private property rather than the highway. 

 
6  During the Covid19 restrictions the applicant has been using the forecourt 

area to the front of 6 Station Road in order to continue trading. His current 
licence only allows off sales to this area to be made in sealed containers. The 
applicant now wishes to increase the current licensable area to include the 
property at 6 Station Road and the forecourt area to the front of this property. 
The applicant has submitted this application for a new Premises Licence as 
the licensable area is to be substantially increased. 

 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 7 September 2021 13

Agenda Item 5

mailto:jon.bryant@midsussex,gov.uk


 
 
 
7 The current Premises Licence allows the following activities:  
 
  

Sale by retail of alcohol 
 

Everyday 12:00 - 22:00 
 

 
The current opening hours of the Premises are Everyday 07:30 - 22:30 
 

8 The applicant seeks the following licensable activities and timings: 
 
  

Sale by retail of alcohol Sunday to Thursday 12:00 – 22:00 
Friday and Saturday 12:00 – 23:00 
Bank Holidays 12:00-23:00 

 
 The opening hours in the application are stated as: 

Sunday to Thursday 07:30 – 22:30  
Friday and Saturday 07:30 – 23:30  
Bank Holidays 07:30 – 23:30 

 
9 The application was correctly advertised at the site between 13th July 2021 

and 10th August 2021 and in the East Grinstead Courier on 16th July 2021. 
 
10 The Carriage has been subject of a number of complaints to the Planning 

Department and the Environmental Protection Team since it opened in 
October 2021. The majority of these complaints surround odour and other 
issues from the premises which concern Planning and are not relevant to this 
application and a separate Planning application has been submitted in 
respect of the premises. There have been complaints of excessive noise in 
the late evenings from the premises which have been dealt with by the 
Environmental Protection Team. 

 
11 There have been complaints of the current premises being open past the 

permitted hours until 23:00 hours and these have been highlighted to the 
Premises Licence Holder, Mr Mevlit who stated that this was a staff 
misunderstanding of the closing time which has been resolved. 

 
12 There have been a total of four representations received in respect of this 

application. One is from a Responsible Authority, Mid Sussex Environmental 
Protection Team and three from nearby residents. The details of these 
representations are appended to the report. 

 
13 The Committee should be aware when reading the representations from the 

members of public that some of the information contained therein is irrelevant 
for the purposes of the Licensing Act 2003. They are the comments relating to 
Car Parking and people driving to the location. 

 
14  The police did initially raise a representation, but this has been satisfied by 

the agreement of both parties to a number conditions to be attached to the 
licence.  

 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 7 September 2021 14



15 The main points raised in the representations that are relevant relate to the 
licensing objective of Public Nuisance. They refer to concerns regarding the 
timings in respect of the use of the outside forecourt area and excessive 
noise from this use. 

 
16 The Committee must focus on these parts only and disregard the irrelevant 

matters when determining this application. 
 
17 Should the Committee grant the licence I respectfully request that a number 

of conditions detailed in the appendices to this report be included to take into 
account the matters mentioned in paragraphs 14 and 15. 

 
 
Representations 
 
18 Four representations have been received in respect of the application which 

are summarised: 
  

 Environmental Protection Team – This Responsible Authority have raised 
representations in respect of the Licensing Objective of the prevention of 
Public Nuisance. They have stated to the applicant that given the sensitivity of 
this location and the proximity of residential dwellings they have concerns that 
there is the potential for public nuisance due to break out noise from the 
premises and noise generated by customers congregating outside. They 
further stated that the business has been in operation for several months, and 
the Council have received complaints alleging disturbance caused by loud 
music being played, noise from customers and due to The Carriage bar being 
open later than permitted.  
 
They suggested a number of Licence conditions that would satisfy the 
representations which included that the outside seating area to The Front 
Carriage would not be used by customers to consume food or drink after 
21:30 hours Monday to Sunday. This was not acceptable to the applicant. 
 

 Mrs Lindsay Williams has made a representation on the grounds of Public 
Nuisance. She lives nearby in Grange Road. She has stated since the ability 
to open and use outdoor space was allowed, the use of these outside 
premises has meant regular noise from customers, often late into the evening 
and people tend to hang around the area in or near parked cars even after 
closing. It is regularly impossible to sit outside in the evening without being 
disturbed by this noise. During the day, music is sometimes played which can 
be heard widely. She further states ‘an extension in licensing hours - and the 
current application for planning - will only serve to make these matters worse. 
Last orders at 11.00 on Friday, Saturday and Bank Holidays still means that 
people will be drinking right up to closing at 11.30 and the area will probably 
not be clear until midnight.’ 

 

 Mrs Chrysoula Bailey has made a representation on the ground of public 
nuisance. She lives in Old Station Close and has stated, I wish to make a 
representation on the grounds of public nuisance because of the use of an 
outside area till at least 11.30 pm. As the current licensing hours are already 
a nuisance because of the noise from inebriated customers shouting to each 
other on the premises and slamming car doors when they leave, but also the 
door of the premises being slammed shut, I fear and anticipate more of this 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 7 September 2021 15



unsocial behaviour. We are older people and go to bed at 10 pm.  We don't 
want to be woken up at 11.30 then lie awake for hours trying to get back 
to sleep. I have similar issues on the grounds of crime and disorder as there 
have been instances of rowdy behaviour and drunkenness in the past which 
have been reported to the council.  Also instances of current licensing hours 
being exceeded which I have also witnessed. I have seen and endured many 
instances of the regulations and guidelines not being adhered to, that I have 
no confidence whatsoever that any new licensing hours will be adhered to. 
 

 Mr Gary Rice has made a representation on the grounds of public nuisance. 
He also resides in Old Station Close. He has stated, ‘the proposed closing 

time of 23:30 on Friday nights, Saturday nights and bank holidays would 
cause a considerable amount of noise emanating from the establishment 
especially in the warm weather when the outside areas are in use and we 
have our windows open. Having people gathered outside number 12 Old 
Station Close (a cocktail bar) gone 22:00 every Friday and Saturday night just 
isn’t taking into account the nearby residents home lives, when did the last 
cocktail bar open in a residential close? The current hours of operation are 
already causing us a considerable amount of stress, the establishment is 
rarely closed at 22:30 on Thursdays, Fridays and Saturdays. We are currently 
suffering from noise of cars/taxi coming and going, drunken noise of 
customers when they are `on or off the premises` this will only get worse and 
drag into the early hours of the morning if the new license gets approved.’ 

 
The full representations are appended to the report  

 
 
Policy Context 
 
19  Determination of Application for a Premises Licence 

 
The Committee must determine the application in accordance with the 
Licensing Act 2003 (LA03), MSDC Licensing Policy and the Home Office 
Guidance issued under Section 182 Licensing Act 2003, whilst having due 
regard to the applicant’s submissions and relevant representations. 
 

20 Section 18 LA03 deals with the determination of the application: 
 
Grant of premises licence 
 
18.  Determination of application for premises licence 
 
(1) This section applies where the relevant licensing authority— 

 
(a) receives an application for a premises licence made in accordance with 
section 17, and 

 
(b) is satisfied that the applicant has complied with any requirement imposed 
on him under subsection (5) of that section. 

 
(2) Subject to subsection (3), the authority must grant the licence in 
accordance with the application subject only to— 

 
(a) such conditions as are consistent with the operating schedule 
accompanying the application, and 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 7 September 2021 16



 
(b)any conditions which must under section 19, 20 or 21 be included in the 
licence. 

 
(3) Where relevant representations are made, the authority must— 

 
(a) hold a hearing to consider them, unless the authority, the applicant and 

each person who has made such representations agree that a hearing is 
unnecessary, and 
 

(b) having regard to the representations, take such of the steps mentioned in 
subsection (4) (if any) as it considers appropriate for the promotion of the 
licensing objectives. 

 
(4) The steps are— 

 
(a) to grant the licence subject to— 
 
(i) the conditions mentioned in subsection (2)(a) modified to such extent as 
the authority considers appropriate for the promotion of the licensing 
objectives, and 

 
(ii) any condition which must under section 19, 20 or 21 be included in the 

licence; 
 
(b) to exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable activities 
to which the application relates; 
 
(c) to refuse to specify a person in the licence as the premises supervisor; 
 
(d) to reject the application. 
 

(5) For the purposes of subsection (4)(a)(i) the conditions mentioned in 
subsection (2)(a) are modified if any of them is altered or omitted or any new 
condition is added. 

 
(6) For the purposes of this section, “relevant representations” means 
representations which— 

 
(a) are about the likely effect of the grant of the premises licence on the 
promotion of the licensing objectives, 

 
(b) meet the requirements of subsection (7), 

 
(c) if they relate to the identity of the person named in the application as 
the proposed premises supervisor, meet the requirements of subsection (9), 
and 

 
(d) are not excluded representations by virtue of section 32 (restriction on 
making representations following issue of provisional statement). 

 
(7) The requirements of this subsection are— 

 
(a)  that the representations were made by a responsible authority or other 
person within the period prescribed under section 17(5)(c), 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 7 September 2021 17



 
(b)  that they have not been withdrawn, and 

 
(c) in the case of representations made by a person who is not a 
responsible authority, that they are not, in the opinion of the relevant licensing 
authority, frivolous or vexatious. 

 
21  Relevant Representations 
 

The Licensing Act 2003 requires representations to address the four licensing 
Objectives which are 

 
1. Prevention of Crime and Disorder 
2. Promotion of Public Safety 
3. Prevention of Public Nuisance 
4. Prevention of Harm to children and young persons 

 
22  A representation is a ‘relevant representation’ if it is about the likely effect of 

the grant of the licence on the promotion of the licensing objectives. The 
objector must establish that such a consequence is a likely effect of a grant - 
(ie more probable than not) 

 
Other Options Considered 
 
23  In order to lawfully provide licensable activities as applied for, they must be 

conducted under the authority of a Premises Licence.  
 
Financial Implications 
 
24 The final decision made by the Committee in this matter is subject to appeal 

in the Magistrates Court by any party to the proceedings. 
 

Other Material Implications 
 
25  Section 136 Licensing Act 2003 – A person commits an offence if he carries 

on or attempts to carry a licensable activity on or from any premises 
otherwise than under and in accordance with an authorisation or he knowingly 
allows a licensable activity to be so carried on. 
 

26 A person guilty of an offence under this section is liable on summary 
conviction to imprisonment for a term not exceeding six months or to a fine or 
both. 
 

Sustainability Implications  

27 None. 
 
 
Background Papers 
 
Appendix 1 – Application Form and plan of premises 
Appendix 2 – Map of area 
Appendix 3 – Photos of location 
 
Representations 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 7 September 2021 18



 
Appendix 4 – Representation from Environmental Protection 
Appendix 5 – Representation from Mrs Williams 
Appendix 6 -  Representation from Mrs Bailey 
Appendix 7 -  Representation from Mr Rice 
 
 
Other Documents 
 
Appendix 8 – Schedule of proposed conditions 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 7 September 2021 19



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1

Liquor Licensing Committee - 7 September 2021 21



Liquor Licensing Committee - 7 September 2021 22



Liquor Licensing Committee - 7 September 2021 23



Liquor Licensing Committee - 7 September 2021 24



Liquor Licensing Committee - 7 September 2021 25



Liquor Licensing Committee - 7 September 2021 26



Liquor Licensing Committee - 7 September 2021 27



Liquor Licensing Committee - 7 September 2021 28



Liquor Licensing Committee - 7 September 2021 29



Liquor Licensing Committee - 7 September 2021 30



Liquor Licensing Committee - 7 September 2021 31



This page is intentionally left blank



Location Map        

 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

 

Liquor Licensing C
om

m
ittee - 7 S

eptem
ber 2021

33



Location Map        

 

Liquor Licensing C
om

m
ittee - 7 S

eptem
ber 2021

34



  APPENDIX 3 

 

View of Front Carriage – Station Road 

 

Side View of Front Carriage 

 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 7 September 2021 35



   
 

 

View showing both premises 

 

View Towards Front Carriage 

 

 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 7 September 2021 36



   
 

 

View towards The Carriage  

 

View of The Carriage 

 

 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 7 September 2021 37



   
 

 

Frontal view of The Carriage 

 

Frontal view of the Front Carriage area 

 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 7 September 2021 38



From:
To:
Cc:
Subject:
Date:
Attachments:

Jane Cooper
Mark Berry
licensing
RE: LI/21/0683 The Carriage 12 Old Station Close and The Front Carriage 6 Station Road 
09 August 2021 17:23:12
image001.png

Dear Mr Berry,

I have considered your comments however, given complaints received concerning noise 
generated by use of the outside seating area, I cannot recommend extending this use until 22:00 
hours.  

My comments made to the Licensing team on 4th August 2021 therefore still stand.

Kind regards,

Jane Cooper
Environmental Health Officer
Mid Sussex District Council
Environmental Health
Tel:  +44 (0)1444 477437
Email: jc

From: Mark Berry <redacted> 
Sent: 06 August 2021 11:57
To: Jane Cooper <Jc>
Cc: licensing <licensing@midsussex.gov.uk>; Aydin Mevlit <aredacted>; Murat Mevlit 
<redacted>
Subject: Re: LI/21/0683 The Carriage 12 Old Station Close and The Front Carriage 6 Station Road

Dear Jane,

I refer to your comments in relation to my client’s licensing application under the above 
reference.  I have now had a chance to consult with the applicant (copied in) and we have

APPENDIX 4

Liquor Licensing Committee - 7 September 2021 39

mailto:jane.cooper@midsussex.gov.uk



difficulty with one of the suggested conditions, that being the requirement to close the external 
seating at 21.30. Please can we ask for consideration to be given to a 22.00 curfew on the 
external seating. Given that you are requiring approval of a Noise Management Plan as well, we 
feel that the impacts of the use of external seating between 21.30 and 22.00 can be handled 
under that. The applicants can manage the operation in a manner that is sensitive to the 
neighbours and we are asking for some flexibility on this point to help the business to operate in 
a customer-friendly fashion.

I look forward to hearing from you.

Kind regards,

Mark Berry
Mob. redacted 

Sent from my iPad



On 4 Aug 2021, at 12:22, Jane Cooper <jc> wrote:

Dear Mr Berry,

Thank you for your email.

Given complaints received relating to noise from customers and music at this site, 
and the proximity of residential dwellings, I do not feel the mitigation measures put 
forward are sufficient to prevent public nuisance.

I therefore write on behalf of Mid Sussex District Council Environmental Protection 
to raise a representation against the grant of the above application on the grounds 
of the licensing objective of the prevention of a public nuisance.

The applicant seeks to supply alcohol for consumption both inside The Carriage and 
The Front Carriage, and by customers seated at tables in the area located to the 
front of The Front Carriage between 12:00 and 22:30 Monday to Thursday and on 
Sundays, and between 12:00 and 23:30 on Fridays and Saturdays.

I have concerns that use of the outside area by customers consuming alcohol later 
in the evening could cause noise disturbance to the occupants of nearby residential 
properties, particularly if the area is used by groups of customers consuming 
alcohol whilst standing. In addition, there is the potential for public nuisance at 
these two premises due to noise break out from the buildings.

If the applicant is agreeable to the proposed conditions, Environmental Protection 
can resolve this representation subject to these conditions being attached to the 
premises licence.

Conditions:

Liquor Licensing Committee - 7 September 2021 40



1. The outside seating area to The Front Carriage will not be used by customers
to consume food or drink after 21:30 hours Monday to Sunday.

2. Tables and chairs will only be permitted in the outside area to The Front
Carriage in accordance with the layout submitted by the applicant.

3. The outside seating area to The Front Carriage will only be used by
customers who are seated at tables. For the avoidance of doubt, there will
be no consumption of alcohol by customers who are standing in the outside
area.

4. The main entrance doors to The Carriage and to The Front Carriage shall
remain closed after 21:30 hours, except when used for access and egress.
All other external windows and doors shall also remain closed after 21:30
hours, except when used in the event of an emergency.

5. Display suitable prominent notices close to the exit doors of The Carriage
and The Front Carriage, and in the outside area to The Front Carriage,
requesting patrons to have regard to neighbours and to leave the premises
quickly and quietly.

6. No bottling out activities outside of the following hours: 08:00 to 20:00 hrs
Monday to Saturday; 09:00 to 18:00 Sundays and Bank/Public Holidays.

7. The Premises shall only operate once a Noise Management Plan (NMP) has
been submitted  to and approved in writing by the Environmental Protection
Team.  The NMP shall comprise measures to control noise from music and
customers affecting nearby residents as well as a complaints management
procedure.  Licensable activities shall thereafter be carried out at all times in
accordance with the approved NMP, unless any alterations are otherwise
first submitted to and approved in writing by the Environmental Protection
Team. The NMP shall be reviewed after any significant changes to operation
or after any noise complaints are received. If the Environmental Protection
Team is satisfied that the NMP is not proving effective this approval may be
withdraw by the Local Authority’s Authorised Officer.

Please confirm that your client accepts these conditions.

Kind regards,

Jane Cooper
Environmental Health Officer
Mid Sussex District Council
Environmental Health
Tel:  +44 (0)1444 477437
Email: jc

Liquor Licensing Committee - 7 September 2021 41

mailto:jane.cooper@midsussex.gov.uk


You don't often get email from redacted. Learn why this is important

<image001.png>

From: Mark Berry <redacted> 
Sent: 28 July 2021 15:14
To: Jane Cooper <Jc>
Cc: Murat Mevlit <redacted>; Aydin Mevlit<redacted>
Subject: Re: LI/21/0683 The Carriage 12 Old Station Close and The Front Carriage 6 
Station Road

Dear Jane,

Following your email of 19 July, I have conferred with the client about management
of noise and their response is as follows:

Response to concerns about noise breakout from the Carriage
Restaurant.

We have been asked to state what we will do to manage any
problems with noise associated with the operation of our
restaurant and bar for which we have applied for a liquor license.

Firstly, we acknowledge that there have been some issues with
the initial operation of the premises. This has coincided with
heavy reliance on the external deck area whilst the new
restaurant is under refurbishment at No.6 (The Front Carriage).
Once the accommodation at No 6 is fully operational we will not
be so reliant on the external seating.

The European Cup also coincided with a period when new
freedoms were being enjoyed following the relaxation of COVID-
19 rules. We accept that this gave rise to an unusual degree of
activity which we would not expect to be repeated in such
circumstances.

In support of our licensing application we are willing to commit
to:

1. Monitoring the external noise generation and taking
appropriate action to mitigate any unacceptable disturbance by
intervening and actively managing the cause.
2. Implementing a cut off time for music whether acoustic or
amplified.

Liquor Licensing Committee - 7 September 2021 42

http://aka.ms/LearnAboutSenderIdentification
mailto:Jane.Cooper@midsussex.gov.uk


3. Monitoring noise with a meter, if necessary, and using a cut off
on any amplification if a prescribed level is exceeded.
4. Keeping external doors to the premises closed later in the
evening.
5. Asking customers to leave the premises quietly.
6. Clearing tables and chairs away and clearing up and cleaning
the outside terrace quietly after closing time – furniture currently
cannot be left outside overnight but we are looking at options to
allow us to leave the tables in situ.

We have endured a difficult period with lockdown and since then
we sustained a serious attack of vandalism where our electric
awning was badly damaged, plant pots were strewn over the
main thorough fare and barriers bent and damaged.

We hope that we can put this period behind us and get the
business well established to benefit the people of Crawley Down.
We have had a lot of very favourable comments on social media.

We are, of course, looking to open the indoor section of the
restaurant soon which will we believe will alleviate a lot of the
initial noise issues.

We hope that the Council will support us and, if there are any
other measures we can implement, please let us know so that we
can work positively to allay any fears.

Murat and Aydin Mevlit

I hope that the above is sufficient but if you require any more information, I have
copied Murat and Aydin into this response.

Kind regards,

Mark Berry
Berry Town Planning 
Mob. redacted

Get Outlook for iOS

Liquor Licensing Committee - 7 September 2021 43

https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Faka.ms%2Fo0ukef&data=04%7C01%7Clicensing%40midsussex.gov.uk%7Cf467c90e91744dcbe42208d95b51faee%7C248de4f9d13548cca4c8babd7e9e8703%7C0%7C0%7C637641229917205818%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=B%2B489XxQvAXRS7Rai0Mt2%2FlwFfiezhUHjVU9NINszf8%3D&reserved=0


From: Jane Cooper <Jc>
Sent: Monday, July 19, 2021 4:35 pm
To: MB
Subject: LI/21/0683 The Carriage 12 Old Station Close and The Front Carriage 6 
Station Road

Dear Mr Berry,

I have been consulted regarding the application for a Premises Licence for the 
above properties.

Given the sensitivity of this location and the proximity of residential dwellings 
located above the two bars, I have concerns that there is the potential for public 
nuisance due to break out noise from the premises and noise generated by 
customers congregating outside. As you know, this business has been in operation 
for several months, and the Council have received complaints alleging disturbance 
caused by loud music being played, noise from customers and due to The Carriage 
bar being open later than permitted.

Please will you confirm measures your client intends to put in place to combat 
these issues.

I look forward to hearing from you.

Kind regards,

Jane Cooper

Jane Cooper
Environmental Health Officer
Mid Sussex District Council
Environmental Health
Tel:  +44 (0)1444 477437
Email: jc

<image001.png>

The information contained in this email may be subject to public disclosure under 
the Freedom of Information Act 2000. Unless the information contained in this 
email is legally exempt from disclosure, we cannot guarantee that we will not 
provide the whole or part of this email to a third party making a request for 
information about the subject matter of this email. This email and any attachments 
may contain confidential information and is intended only to be seen and used by 
the named addressees. If you are not the named addressee, any use, disclosure, 
copying, alteration or forwarding of this email and its attachments is unauthorised. 
If you have received this email in error please notify the sender immediately by 
email or by calling +44 (0) 1444 458 166 and remove this email and its attachments 
from your system. The views expressed within this email and any attachments are

Liquor Licensing Committee - 7 September 2021 44

mailto:jane.cooper@midsussex.gov.uk


not necessarily the views or policies of Mid Sussex District Council. We have taken
precautions to minimise the risk of transmitting software viruses, but we advise you
to carry out your own virus checks before accessing this email and any
attachments. Except where required by law, we shall not be responsible for any
damage, loss or liability of any kind suffered in connection with this email and any
attachments, or which may result from reliance on the contents of this email and
any attachments.
The information contained in this email may be subject to public disclosure under
the Freedom of Information Act 2000. Unless the information contained in this
email is legally exempt from disclosure, we cannot guarantee that we will not
provide the whole or part of this email to a third party making a request for
information about the subject matter of this email. This email and any attachments
may contain confidential information and is intended only to be seen and used by
the named addressees. If you are not the named addressee, any use, disclosure,
copying, alteration or forwarding of this email and its attachments is unauthorised.
If you have received this email in error please notify the sender immediately by
email or by calling +44 (0) 1444 458 166 and remove this email and its attachments
from your system. The views expressed within this email and any attachments are
not necessarily the views or policies of Mid Sussex District Council. We have taken
precautions to minimise the risk of transmitting software viruses, but we advise you
to carry out your own virus checks before accessing this email and any
attachments. Except where required by law, we shall not be responsible for any
damage, loss or liability of any kind suffered in connection with this email and any
attachments, or which may result from reliance on the contents of this email and
any attachments.

Liquor Licensing Committee - 7 September 2021 45



This page is intentionally left blank



From: planninginfo@midsussex.gov.uk
To: licensing
Subject: Mid Sussex DC - Online Register - Comments for Licensing Application LI/21/0683
Date: 07 August 2021 11:56:21

Comments summary

Dear Sir/Madam,

Licensing Application comments have been made. A summary of the comments is provided below.

Comments were submitted at 07/08/2021 11:55 AM

Application Summary

Address: The Carriage 12 Old Station Close Crawley Down Crawley West Sussex RH10
4TX

Proposal: Premises Licence

Case Officer: Mr Jon Bryant

Click for further information

Customer Details
Address: 12 Grange Road Crawley Down RH10 4JT

Comments Details
Commenter Type: Neighbour or general public

Stance: Customer objects to the Licensing Application

Reasons for comment: - Prevention of Crime & Disorder
- Prevention of Public nuisance
- Relates to other issues

Comments: 07/08/2021 11:55 AM My property in Grange Road backs onto Old Station Road
- I am some 100 yards from The Carriage and the seating around the corner and
onto the decking in Station Road. Since the ability to open and use outdoor
space was allowed, the use of these outside premises has meant regular noise
from customers, often late into the evening and people tend to hang around the
area in or near parked cars even after closing. It is regularly impossible to sit
outside in the evening without being disturbed by this noise. During the day,
music is sometimes played which can be heard widely.

Parking is also an issue, on several occasions I have seen vehicles ( sometimes
tradesman doing repairs etc ) parked across the left hand carriageway on double
yellow lines blocking traffic turning left out of Old Station Road. Longer licencing
hours will obviously encourage more people to come and parking locally for the
general shops is already under pressure.

An extension in licensing hours - and the current application for planning - will
only serve to make these matters worse. Last orders at 11.00 on Friday,
Saturday and Bank Holidays still means that people will be drinking right up to
closing at 11.30 and the area will probably not be clear until midnight.

There are also closer neighbours, especially in the surrounding flats and the Old
People's accommodation across the road who would be greatly effected by
these increased hours and possibly intimidated by those who have consumed
volumes of alcohol.

Kind regards

APPENDIX 6

Liquor Licensing Committee - 7 September 2021 47

mailto:planninginfo@midsussex.gov.uk
mailto:licensing@midsussex.gov.uk
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fpa.midsussex.gov.uk%2Fonline-applications%2FcentralDistribution.do%3FcaseType%3DLicencingApplication%26keyVal%3DQW4IO6KT07C00&data=04%7C01%7Clicensing%40midsussex.gov.uk%7Ce927dc0e733c4d16be6b08d95991fc9b%7C248de4f9d13548cca4c8babd7e9e8703%7C0%7C0%7C637639305807508278%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=eu%2FZoqkaDlYghRGfok%2Bcdj9icH5OoqJA8hW3oqLSYjE%3D&reserved=0


This page is intentionally left blank



From:
To:
Subject:
Date:

cb 
licensing
Representation for The Carriage premises licence application 
06 August 2021 11:05:14

You don't often get email from cb - redacted. Learn why this is important

I live at 16, Old Station Close and I wish to  make a representation on the grounds of
public nuisance because  of  the  use of  an outside  area till at least 11.30 pm. As the
current licensing  hours  are already a nuisance because  of the noise from inebriated
customers shouting to each other on the premises and slamming car doors when they leave,
but also the door  of the  premises being slammed shut, I  fear and anticipate  more of this
unsocial behaviour. We are older  people and go to bed at 10 pm.  We don't  want to  be 
woken up at 11.30 then lie awake for hours trying to  get back  to  sleep.  
 I  have  similar issues on the grounds of crime and disorder as there have been instances of
rowdy behaviour and drunkenness in the past which have been reported to the council. 
Also instances of current licensing hours being exceeded which I have also witnessed. I
have seen and endured many instances of the regulations and guidelines not being adhered
to,  that I have no confidence whatsoever that any new licensing hours will be adhered to.

 Mrs Chrysoula  Bailey 

APPENDIX 6

Liquor Licensing Committee - 7 September 2021 49

mailto:licensing@midsussex.gov.uk
http://aka.ms/LearnAboutSenderIdentification


This page is intentionally left blank



From:
To:
Subject:
Date:
Attachments:

GR
Jon Bryant
Re: Carriages - representation - LI/21/0683 
09 August 2021 19:48:25
image001.jpg
image002.png

Dear Jon

My representation is regarding the prevention of public nuisance and i have supplied the
council with mobile phone footage.

Regards
Gary Rice

Get Outlook for Android

From: Jon Bryant <jb>
Sent: Monday, August 9, 2021 5:30:53 PM
To: Gary rice <redacted>
Subject: RE: Carriages - representation - LI/21/0683

Dear Gary

For completeness could you confirm that your representation is made under the Licensing 
Objective of the prevention of public nuisance and that you have supplied the Council with 
mobile phone footage of the premises being open and trading at 22:45 hours on evening, 
confirmed when you spoke with a member of staff at the door.

Kind regards

Jon

Jon Bryant
Senior Licensing Officer
Mid Sussex District Council
Environmental Health
redacted

jb

www.midsussex.gov.uk

MSDClogo

APPENDIX 7

Liquor Licensing Committee - 7 September 2021 51

mailto:Jon.Bryant@midsussex.gov.uk
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Faka.ms%2Fghei36&data=04%7C01%7CJon.Bryant%40midsussex.gov.uk%7Cffbd700f3b124d67d07008d95b664340%7C248de4f9d13548cca4c8babd7e9e8703%7C0%7C0%7C637641317039415890%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=0BVHy4k4OePAwyKTvTP%2FfIsoK55vyYw3xMTzEYDL1ns%3D&reserved=0
mailto:jon.bryant@midsussex.gov.uk
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.midsussex.gov.uk%2F&data=04%7C01%7CJon.Bryant%40midsussex.gov.uk%7Cffbd700f3b124d67d07008d95b664340%7C248de4f9d13548cca4c8babd7e9e8703%7C0%7C0%7C637641317039415890%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=FWYuVOq%2FNMfi5GyIZgjOaPBbRkOTg1MK9c11t6dNtdY%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.midsussex.gov.uk%2F&data=04%7C01%7CJon.Bryant%40midsussex.gov.uk%7Cffbd700f3b124d67d07008d95b664340%7C248de4f9d13548cca4c8babd7e9e8703%7C0%7C0%7C637641317039425847%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=YxX%2FyLQEmZkde2d1qSa%2F8boZDL9GUMWG%2FBIGs3LDNW0%3D&reserved=0




‘Working together for a better Mid Sussex’

From: Gary rice <redacted> 
Sent: 09 August 2021 17:15
To: Jon Bryant <jb> 
Subject: Carriages - representation - LI/21/0683

Dear Jon

We would like to put in a representation against the proposed new license at The Carriage in
Crawley Down. 
The proposed closing time of 23:30 on Friday nights, Saturday nights and bank holidays would
cause a considerable amount of noise emanating from the establishment especially in the warm
weather when the outside areas are in use and we have our window's open. Having people
gathered outside number 12 old station close (a cocktail bar) gone 22:00 every Friday and
Saturday night just isnt  taking into account the nearby residents home lifes, when did the
last cocktail bar open in a residential close ? 
The current hours of operation are all ready causing us a considerable amount of stress,
the establishment is rarely closed at 22:30 on Thursdays, Fridays and Saturdays. We are
currently suffering from noise of cars/taxi coming and going, drunken noise of customers
when they are `on or off the premises` this will only get worse and drag into the early
hours of the morning if the new license get approved.

Regards
Gary Rice

Get Outlook for Android

The information contained in this email may be subject to public disclosure under the
Freedom of Information Act 2000. Unless the information contained in this email is legally
exempt from disclosure, we cannot guarantee that we will not provide the whole or part of
this email to a third party making a request for information about the subject matter of this

Liquor Licensing Committee - 7 September 2021 52

https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Faka.ms%2Fghei36&data=04%7C01%7CJon.Bryant%40midsussex.gov.uk%7Cffbd700f3b124d67d07008d95b664340%7C248de4f9d13548cca4c8babd7e9e8703%7C0%7C0%7C637641317039425847%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=nMWucCn%2Ff2%2BUwaof3y%2FkDQwCAG4UMtc857eSFaNMHhY%3D&reserved=0


email. This email and any attachments may contain confidential information and is
intended only to be seen and used by the named addressees. If you are not the named
addressee, any use, disclosure, copying, alteration or forwarding of this email and its
attachments is unauthorised. If you have received this email in error please notify the
sender immediately by email or by calling +44 (0) 1444 458 166 and remove this email
and its attachments from your system. The views expressed within this email and any
attachments are not necessarily the views or policies of Mid Sussex District Council. We
have taken precautions to minimise the risk of transmitting software viruses, but we advise
you to carry out your own virus checks before accessing this email and any attachments.
Except where required by law, we shall not be responsible for any damage, loss or liability
of any kind suffered in connection with this email and any attachments, or which may
result from reliance on the contents of this email and any attachments.

Liquor Licensing Committee - 7 September 2021 53



This page is intentionally left blank



  APPENDIX 8 

 

Proposed Conditions 

Agreed Conditions with police 

 

1.  Digital CCTV and appropriate recording equipment to be installed in accordance with Home 

Office Guidelines relating to UK Police Requirements for Digital CCTV System (PSDB 

Publication Number 09/05), operated and maintained throughout the premises internally 

and externally to cover all public areas including the entrance to the premises and the 

licensed area/outside patio tables and chairs area. The system shall be on and recording at 

all times the premises licence is in operation. 

The CCTV cameras and recording equipment must be of sufficient quality to work in all 

lighting levels inside and outside the premises at all times.  

CCTV footage will be stored for a minimum of 31 days. 

The management will give full and immediate cooperation and technical assistance to the 

Police in the event that CCTV footage is required for the prevention and detection of 

suspected or alleged crime.  

The CCTV images will record and display dates and times, and these times will be checked 

regularly to ensure their accuracy.  

Subject to GDPR guidance and legislation, the management of the premises will ensure that 

key staff are fully trained in the operation of the CCTV, and will be able to download selected 

footage onto a disk (or other electronic portable device acceptable to Sussex Police) for the 

police without difficulty or delay and without charge to Sussex Police.    

Any breakdown or system failure will be notified to the police immediately & remedied as 

soon as practicable. 

In the event of the CCTV system hard drive being seized as evidence as part of a criminal 

investigation by Sussex Police or for any other reason, the premises will be expected to 

install a replacement hard drive or a temporary replacement drive as soon as practicable. 

2. An incident log will be maintained by the premises showing a detailed note of incidents that 

occur in the premises and any refusals of alcohol. The incident log will be inspected and 

signed off by the DPS (or a person with delegated authority) at least once a month. The log 

book should be kept on the premises and be available for inspection at all times the 

premises are open by officers of any responsible authority. An incident will be defined as 

being one which involves an allegation of a criminal offence. 

3. Patrons will not be permitted to take drinks in open containers to consume outside on the 

pavement/public highway beyond the licensed outside tables and chairs area of the 

premises whilst smoking or otherwise congregating outside of the premises beyond the 

licensed area. 

4. All off sales of alcohol will be made in sealed containers 

5. Security Industry Authority (SIA) door supervisors must be deployed at the premises at any 

time when the licence holder identifies by way of a suitable and sufficient written risk 

assessment that SIA door supervisors and other security measures are necessary.  It must 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 7 September 2021 55



   
 

 

also consider busy periods such as Bank Holidays, Christmas and New Year, Seasonal 

Variations and other Town Centre Events along with any special events at the premises such 

as live music, discos, screening of sporting events and other similar functions or 

entertainment.  The risk assessment will also cover any requirement for polycarbonate 

drinking vessels, ticket only events, entry restrictions and last entry times. The written risk 

assessment must be available on the premises for inspection by police and authorised 

officers of the Licensing Authority.  This written risk assessment is to be reviewed and 

updated as necessary and at least annually and must take into account information or 

guidance offered by the police and the licensing authority. 

6. Whenever SIA door supervisors are on duty, they must be provided in accordance with the 

following: 

 

 At a ratio of 1 per 100 customers or part thereof, although at all times with a 

minimum of two; 

 On duty until the premises has closed to the public, licensable activities has ceased 

and the venue is completely clear of patrons and all customers have dispersed from 

the immediate area; 

 Must wear clearly marked reflective jacket or tabard in order that they can be readily 

identifiable; 

 Must be equipped with clickers or other device(s) in order that they can accurately 

measure and ensure that the maximum capacity of the premises is complied with a 

written record being kept; and 

 Must monitor/supervise any queue of customers waiting to gain access to the 

premises and ensure that so long as social distancing requirements are in place, that 

these are complied with both inside and outside the premises. 

7. SIA door supervisors shall complete incident logs prior to the end of their shift. Records shall 

be maintained at the premises containing the full name, date of birth, and SIA badge 

number of every Door Supervisor. The record shall include all dates and times when a Door 

Supervisor is employed. If Staff are employed through an agency the name and address of 

the agency must be included. The Door Supervisor records will be kept at the premises and 

made immediately available to officers of any responsible authority upon request. Those 

performing the role of door supervisor shall not perform any other role when engaged for 

the purpose of door supervision activities. 

8. Door supervisors shall be fully briefed prior to work with clear written instructions regarding 

their specific duties including an awareness of persons banned from the premises. These 

records shall be made available to the local licensing authority and/or Sussex Police upon 

request.  

9. A member of the SIA door staff will monitor the outside smoking area whilst the premises 

licence is in operation or until the area has been emptied of patrons at closing time. All SIA 

registered door supervisors shall wear and operate body worn video cameras with a 

recording facility. The body worn cameras will be recording all the time the door supervisors 

are on duty.  All recordings shall be stored for a minimum period of 31 days, with date and 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 7 September 2021 56



   
 

 

time stamping. Viewing of recordings shall be made available upon the request of police, or 

authorised local authority officers, throughout the entire 31 days period. The premises will 

ensure there are sufficient spare batteries fully charged for the body worn cameras so there 

is no issue with cameras not recording due to flat batteries. 

10.  The premises will operate a “Challenge 25” policy whereby any person attempting to buy 

alcohol who appears to be under 25 will be asked for photographic ID to prove their age. The 

recommended forms of ID that will be accepted are passports, driving licenses with a 

photograph, photographic military ID or proof of age cards bearing the “PASS” mark 

hologram 

11. Suitable and sufficient signage advertising the “Challenge 25” policy will be displayed in 

prominent locations in the premises. 

12. The Premises Licence Holder shall ensure that all staff members engaged or to be engaged, 

in selling alcohol at the premises shall receive the following induction training. This training 

will take place prior to the selling of such products: 

·            The lawful selling of age restricted products  

·            Refusing the sale of alcohol to a person who is drunk  

Further verbal reinforcement/refresher training covering the above will be carried out 

thereafter at intervals not to exceed three months, with the date and time of the verbal 

reinforcement/refresher training documented. All such training undertaken by staff 

members shall be fully documented and recorded and signed and dated by both the 

employee and the DPS. All training records shall be kept on the premises and made available 

to officers of any responsible authority upon request 

13. Alcohol deliveries will only be made to a residential or business address and not to a public 

place. The age verification policy (including challenge 25) shall clearly be advertised at each 

stage of the order and on all advertising.  All forms of advertising and promotional literature 

detailing the delivery service (including internet sites and flyers/leaflets) will clearly state 

that alcohol should only be purchased for delivery to intended recipients (or persons who 

will accept delivery on behalf of the named recipient) who are aged over 18. Customers will 

be reminded that it is a criminal offence for a person under 18 to purchase or attempt to 

purchase alcohol and that it is also an offence to purchase alcohol on behalf of a person 

aged under 18 

14. At the time the order is placed a declaration will be required from the person placing the 

order that that person is aged over 18 years of age, and that the intended recipient is over 

18 years of age. This process will be documented, (tick box before proceeding, record of 

verbal acknowledgement or similar). These records must be retained for no less than twelve 

months and produced on request to an officer of a Responsible Authority. 

a. For deliveries where the alcohol is delivered by a third party, the alcohol is 

concealed in a secure sealed package, and the DPS has no direct supervision or 

control over the delivery (such as an independent courier or Royal Mail), there 

cannot be an age verification challenge on delivery, but the above conditions will be 

followed. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 7 September 2021 57



   
 

 

b. For deliveries made directly by the DPS or their employees, staff or agent or persons 

instructed by the DPS/PLH, the person accepting the delivery must be aged 18 years 

or over.  Where the person accepting delivery appears to be under 25, a recognised 

photographic ID must be produced prior to delivery.  No ID, no delivery. 

c. Where the premises contracts a third party to deliver alcohol on their behalf and the 

person collecting the alcohol from the premises delivers it directly to the customer 

within a short timescale (such as Deliveroo, Just Eats), the premises will ensure that 

the third party only employs delivery employees or agents aged 18 or over; is aware 

that alcohol is included in the delivery; that the delivery person actively engages 

with the person receiving delivery and operates a challenge 25 policy rather than 

just handing the delivery over; that in the event that the recipient of the alcohol is 

challenged for ID and does not provide appropriate and valid ID, the delivery person 

will retain the alcohol and return it to the premises. 

Recommended Environmental Protection Team conditions 

1. The outside seating area to The Front Carriage will not be used by customers to consume 

food or drink after 21:30 hours Monday to Sunday. 

2. Tables and chairs will only be permitted in the outside area to The Front Carriage in 

accordance with the layout submitted by the applicant. 

3. The outside seating area to The Front Carriage will only be used by customers who are 

seated at tables. For the avoidance of doubt, there will be no consumption of alcohol by 

customers who are standing in the outside area. 

4. The main entrance doors to The Carriage and to The Front Carriage shall remain closed after 

21:30 hours, except when used for access and egress.  All other external windows and doors 

shall also remain closed after 21:30 hours, except when used in the event of an emergency. 

5. Display suitable prominent notices close to the exit doors of The Carriage and The Front 

Carriage, and in the outside area to The Front Carriage, requesting patrons to have regard to 

neighbours and to leave the premises quickly and quietly.   

6. No bottling out activities outside of the following hours: 08:00 to 20:00 hrs Monday to 

Saturday; 09:00 to 18:00 Sundays and Bank/Public Holidays. 

7. The Premises shall only operate once a Noise Management Plan (NMP) has been submitted 

to and approved in writing by the Environmental Protection Team.  The NMP shall comprise 

measures to control noise from music and customers affecting nearby residents as well as a 

complaints management procedure.  Licensable activities shall thereafter be carried out at 

all times in accordance with the approved NMP, unless any alterations are otherwise first 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Environmental Protection Team. The NMP shall 

be reviewed after any significant changes to operation or after any noise complaints are 

received. If the Environmental Protection Team is satisfied that the NMP is not proving 

effective this approval may be withdrawn by the Local Authority’s Authorised Officer. 

 

 

 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 7 September 2021 58


	Agenda
	4 To confirm the Minutes of the previous meeting held on 9 April 2021.
	5 Application for a New Premises Licence.
	Appendix 1 - Application and Plan
	Appendix 2 - Location Map
	Appendix 3 - Photos of Location
	Appendix 4 - Representation - Enviromental Health Team
	Appendix 5 - Representation - Mrs Williams
	Appendix 6 - Representation - Mrs Bailey
	Appendix 7 - Representation  - Mr Rice
	Appendix 8 - Proposed Conditions




